
 
 

 

 
 

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020) came into force on Saturday 4 April 2020 to enable 
councils to hold remote committee meetings during the 
Covid 19 pandemic period. This is to ensure local authorities 
can conduct business during this current public health 
emergency. 

This meeting will be held remotely under these regulations, 
via the MS Teams application. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 

23 February 2021 
 

Dear Councillor 
 

 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE to be held on Wednesday 3 March 2021 at 
7.30 pm via Zoom (meeting ID and password to be circulated) 
  
 

Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   APOLOGIES  
 

2.   SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the amended Minutes of the meeting held on 2 
September 2020 (previously circulated). 
 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2021 
(previously circulated). 
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 11  
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on the Agenda. 

Public Document Pack



6.   SCRUTINY TASK AND FINISH PANELS (T&PS) PROGRESS REPORTS 
AND/OR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

 To receive progress reports and/or recommendations from Scrutiny Task and 
Finish Panels (T&Ps), if any. 

(a)    Report from Budget Setting and Corporate Plan (Task and Finish) (Pages 5 - 
12) 

 Minutes from the last meeting of the Task and Finish Panel that has 
considered the proposed Corporate Plan 2021-24. 
 

(b)    Update from the Housing Maintenance and Repairs Task and Finish Panel  

 Verbal update on the work of the Housing Maintenance and Repairs Task 
and Finish Panel. 
 

7.   COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP (Pages 13 - 32) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) on the work of the 
Welwyn Hatfield Community Safety Partnership over the past twelve months. 
 

8.   COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION  
 

 To receive and consider any requests by a councillor to scrutinise any matter 
relevant to the functions of the Committee. Requests must be received by 
Governance Services by 2pm on Thursday 25 February. 
 

9.   WORK PROGRAMME 2021-22 (Pages 33 - 50) 
 

 The work programme enables forward planning of items to be considered. In 
addition, the Forward Plan and Key Decision List are attached for Members to 
consider. The Scrutiny Scoring Matrix is available to assist in determining the value 
of any potential scrutiny. 
 

10.   CALL-IN OF CABINET DECISION (Pages 51 - 56) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) on 
the call-in of a decision taken by Cabinet on 9 February 2021. An exempt report 
relating to this item can be found under item 13. 
 

11.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

12.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Committee is asked to resolve: 
 

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for Item 14 and 15 (if any) on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information 
as defined in Section 100(A)(3) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as 
amended). 
 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 



PART II - PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 
 

13.   CALL-IN OF CABINET DECISION (Pages 57 - 60) 
 

 Exempt documents relating to agenda item 10: Call-In of Cabinet Decision. 
 

14.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  
 
 

 
Circulation: Councillors S.Wrenn (Chairman) 

L.Chesterman (Vice-
Chairman) 
S.Elam (Vice-Chairman) 
M.Birleson 
M.Cowan 
B.Fitzsimon 
G.Hayes 
 

M.Holloway 
R.Lass 
D.Richardson 
P.Smith 
S.Thusu 
P.Zukowskyj 
 

    
 
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Services: 01707 357467 or email democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



-1- 
 
Budget Setting and Corporate Plan (Task and Finish Panel) 
22 February 2021 
 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the BUDGET SETTING AND CORPORATE PLAN (TASK 
AND FINISH PANEL) held on Monday 22 February 2021 at 6.30 pm in the via Teams 

 
PRESENT: Councillors G.Hayes (Chair) 

 

  J.Boulton, J.Broach, P.Smith and P.Zukowskyj 
 

OFFICIALS 
PRESENT: 

Chief Executive (K.Ng) 
Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
(N.Long) 
Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) (S.Russell) 
Head of Resources (R.Baker) 
Policy and Communications Manager (T.Burn) 
Governance Services Manager (A.Marston) 

 
 
23. MINUTES 

 

The minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2021 were approved as a correct 
record. 
 

24. CORPORATE PLAN 2021-24 
 

A presentation was given by officers showing the current proposed strategic 
priorities, commitments and approach. 
 

The following points were raised during discussion: 
• Members were happy with the way the proposed Corporate Plan was 

presented, broken down into easily understood sections in a way that is 
adaptable in the future. 

• Attractive and accessible green spaces supporting the borough’s 
wellbeing: members queried whether this covers all green spaces in the 
borough as we have large areas in the borough (Hatfield Park) that are 
huge assets and we do have an ability to influence other landowners. 
Officers confirmed this only includes areas we have ownership of as we 
need to focus on things we can deliver on without being over reliant on 
third parties.  

• Evolving, vibrant town centres and a growing economy: members queried 
whether this should also include district centres (including villages and 
parades of shops). It was recognised that this aim came from the survey 
questions specifically asked about town centres, and that the evolution of 
other areas of the borough would be reflected in the annual plans that 
come out from this overarching plan. Officers confirmed they would reflect 
further on whether this particular aim could be widened. 

• Quality homes through managed growth: no particular comments on this 
section 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6a



-2- 
 
Budget Setting and Corporate Plan (Task and Finish Panel) 
22 February 2021 
 

 
 

• A sense of community where people feel safe: members agreed that this 
aim captures something far less tangible than the others but reflects what 
people in the borough want 

• A well-run council which puts our customers first: members noted that for 
the public reading this it shows that what we are striving for is to work for 
them. There was a continuation of a discussion started at an earlier 
meeting of the panel around the use of the word “customer” but a 
consensus that this is the best word in the circumstances as we have so 
many different service users (residents, businesses, community groups). 

 
25. TIMESCALES AND REPORTING TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

 

Feedback from this panel will go to the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 3 March 2021 for any onward recommendations to then be made 
to Cabinet.  
 

 
Meeting ended at 7.03 pm 
AM 

 

Page 6



Strategic Aim Our Commitments Our Approach

Attractive and 

accessible green 

spaces supporting 

the borough’s 

wellbeing

We will provide a variety of 

green spaces for all our 

communities to enjoy

Protect, enhance and invest in our parks and open spaces, 

woodlands, recreational areas, sports pitches, allotments, play 

areas and community gardens.

Improve access to green spaces, recognising the health benefits they 

bring to all our communities. 

Increase the ecological value of our green spaces and natural habitats 

for future generations, encouraging our communities to do the same.

We will involve our 

communities in the use of 

our green spaces

Continue to work with our partners and volunteers to bring local 

people together in our green spaces.

Promote the use of our green spaces ensuring all our communities 

understand the physical and mental wellbeing benefits they offer.

P
age 7



Strategic aim Our commitment Our approach 

Evolving, vibrant 

town centres and a 

growing economy

We will support businesses as 

they adapt for the future

Work with partners to understand and deliver the help needed 

to help businesses recover from and thrive after Covid.

Deliver and regenerate employment land through the Local 

Plan and planning permissions.

We will recognise the 

importance of town centres as 

the heart of our communities

Work with partners to ensure town centres continue to be 

safe, attractive and desirable places to visit.

Continue planning and delivering regeneration projects with 

our partners to upgrade public spaces and improve transport 

options.

P
age 8



Strategic aim Our commitment Our approach 

Quality homes 

through managed 

growth

We will deliver more affordable 

homes to meet local housing need

Deliver sites for new homes through the Local Plan and 

planning permissions

Secure land, funding and partnerships to deliver homes 

that people can afford

We will provide high quality 

housing, thriving neighbourhoods 

and sustainable communities

Invest in the quality of our social housing and regulate 

the quality of private homes

Help facilitate the delivery of infrastructure such as 

education, health and transport, supporting homes and 

communities

P
age 9



Strategic aim Our commitment Our approach

A sense of 

community where 

people feel safe

We will invest in strong, inclusive 

and supportive communities, 

based on trust and respect for 

everyone.

Encourage and enable local partnerships and joint working to 

achieve the shared goals of our communities.

Be inclusive, creative and innovative when engaging with our 

communities, and involve them in decisions about our 

services and service delivery

We will create welcoming 

neighbourhoods and community 

spaces where people feel safe

Design and maintain attractive neighbourhoods which our 

communities can enjoy and take pride in. 

Add to the vibrancy of our neighbourhoods and community 

spaces by promoting events and activities that celebrate 

diversity and promote community cohesion.

P
age 10



Strategic Aim Our Commitment Our Approach

A well-run council 
which puts our 
customers first

We will put our customers at the 
centre of what we do and how we 
design our services.

Continuously review our customer service channels, 
ensuring they are simple to use, accessible, reliable and 
consistent. 

Match our customer priorities with the resources we 
have available to deliver them and build services around 
them. 

We will deliver modern, efficient 
and transparent services for 
everyone.

Review our services to ensure we are efficient, 
accountable and accessible to our communities.

Ensure we are making the best use of our assets to 
deliver our services safely and efficiently.

We will continue to be an employer 
of choice, attracting and retaining 
the best talent to deliver our 
services.

Ensure our workforce is equipped with the right skills 
and values to deliver excellent public services 

Review our working methods and ensure our staff and 
services have the tools and resources they need to meet 
customer needs.

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Matthew Rayner 
Executive Member: Bernard Sarson 
All Wards 

 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 3 MARCH 2021 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 

COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 District Councils have a mandatory duty to act as a “responsible authority” on their 
local Community Safety Partnership (CSP), in order to plan and deliver measures 
to tackle crime, anti-social behaviour, substance misuse, to reduce offending and 
promote assurances to the public whilst working together with other statutory and 
non-statutory organisations.  

1.2 The Welwyn Hatfield CSP, over the past twelve months the partnership has 
managed and is handling the impact that COVID-19 has on the community, 
tackling varied levels of anti-social behaviour (ASB) and continuing to deliver youth 
engagement/support projects such as ‘Positive Pathways’ and ‘SOS.’  

1.3 The partnership has reacted and evolved to meet the challenges associated to 
COVID-19. One of the key challenges for the CSP includes not being able to 
directly engage 121 with the community about their safety concerns.   

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Committee notes the report of the Community Safety Partnership’s 
successful work over the past 12 months. 

2.2 That the Committee notes that the risk of crime locally remains low.  However, the 
Partnership still works to continue to both reduce crime and the impact that crime 
has on residents of the borough. 

2.3 The Committee formally supports the partnership’s ongoing commitment and work 
to reduce youth ASB and to tackle emerging issues such as ‘county lines’, knife 
crime and serious violence. 

2.4 The Committee notes the importance that the community has placed on ‘feeling 
safe’ through the recent resident’s survey undertaken by the council and supports 
the ongoing partnership work and resources associated with it. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The composition of the CSP can be found in Appendix One which also sets out 
the various subgroups that form the CSP.    

3.2 Appendix Two sets out a copy of the CSP’s Three Year Plan, which provides the 
partnership with some strategic direction as it works to make this borough a safer 
place to live and work.  

4 Community Safety Challenges through 2020  

4.1 Throughout 2020 there were differing pressures placed on the partnership due to 
the impact of COVID-19 on the community.  In addition to this the working practices 
of all organisations needed to change. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



- 2 - 

4.2 Anti-Social Behaviour throughout 2020 was a huge challenge for the partnership 
as the community was forced into lockdowns and pressures at home have 
increased.  

4.3 During the first lockdown between March and June 2020 there was a spike in 
community ASB calls relating to a range of issues including domestic disturbances, 
smoking cannabis, bonfires, COVID breaches and general noise nuisance.  

4.4 Courts closing in March 2020 had a significant impact on the partnership’s ability 
to take meaningful enforcement action against individuals when diversions and 
warning notices were not followed. This also meant a backlog for the courts and 
where cases such as domestic abuse could not be heard, this lead to victims 
withdrawing statements, etc.   

4.5 Domestic Abuse was a huge challenge not only for the local partnership but also 
from a national stance. Referral pathways through schools and health services 
dropped off throughout each lockdown.  However, calls into Hertfordshire 
Domestic Abuse Helpline and Herts IDVA Service increased as more publicity and 
campaigns were released.  

4.6 121 support to young people was immediately impacted from the very start of 
lockdown in March 2020. Support workers went from face to face contact to over 
the phone virtual meetings without notice. This put a huge strain on some young 
people who unfortunately stopped engaging and this put more pressure on the 
workers to actively engage then with the family/support network to ensure that 
young person was not isolated without help. 

4.7 Community engagement and programme work stopped as there was no ability to 
actively engage face to face with residents within the community. This included 
annual programmes like Crucial Crew for all year 6 pupils being cancelled; the 
domestic abuse conference was moved to a virtual conference; and removal of all 
community information days from the programme of activity.  

5 Community Safety Success through 2020 

5.1 Even though the partnership were unable to deliver Year 6 Crucial Crew face to 
face it was felt that it was important that 10-11 year olds still learnt about personal 
safety as these are important messages that they carry with them into secondary 
school. We therefore created an online interactive home learning pack for young 
people to use at home, incorporating all of the key messages whilst making it fun 
at the same time.  

5.2 At the start of the pandemic we began having weekly meetings with key partners 
of the CSP (as opposed to bi-weekly) to ensure we stayed in regular contact, 
updating on any emerging issues relating to COVID-19 or general issues and 
problem solving together. This included working closely with the University as a 
key member of the partnership.  

5.3 Offering security and reassurance to some of the borough’s most vulnerable 
residents and repeat victims of ASB through the installation of ring doorbell 
cameras.  

5.4 Due to people spending more time in their homes the amount of intelligence 
coming through to the partnership around drugs and county lines increased during 
the first lockdown due to extra vigilance. This positively impacted the number of 
arrests and warrants carried out. In January 2021 the police were successful in a 
large year long operation which saw over 20 arrests made of individuals linked to 
county lines in the local area. 

Page 14



- 3 - 

5.5 Even though we were unable to carry out face to face engagement events on 
behalf of the CSP we still dedicated a week in October to delivering key targeted 
safety messages to residents through a social media and marketing campaign. 
Themes included domestic abuse, drugs and alcohol, personal safety and fire 
safety. Lots of shares on social media from residents meant the campaign grew in 
success over the course of the week.  

5.6 The partnership delivered the Annual Tri-district Domestic Abuse Conference 
online. The conference was meant to take place in March 2020 but due to the 
pandemic it had to be cancelled. The online conference (October 2020) had 
around 100 professionals in attendance and the theme was Minority Groups. 
Feedback was extremely positive and as such consideration is being made to 
deliver the conference in 2021 virtually again.  

5.7 Safeguarding for our most vulnerable and at-risk young people continued 
throughout the pandemic. Tight knit partnership working ensured that vulnerable 
young people were still able to receive support from our well-known intervention 
projects Positive Pathways and SOS. Youth workers stayed in constant contact 
and continued to support the needs of young people. Professional meetings like 
MAGPYE (Multi-Agency Group for the Protection of Young People) and YAP 
(Youth Action Panel) continued to enable important information sharing and 
referrals between partners.  

5.8 The partnership delivered two Heads UP magazines for schools and young people 
to access virtually due to the Lockdowns that were in place.  

5.9 The partnership was successful in attaining funding from Herts Community 
Foundation to: 

5.9.1 Provide training to local businesses around shop safety and crime prevention.  

5.9.2 Provide training to parents and guardians on a range of topics which include youth 
violence, gang affiliation and mental health. 

5.9.3 Undertake a range of campaigns to provide community safety messages and raise 
awareness. Which included messaging around safeguarding and encouraging 
residents to report concerns. 

5.9.4 Filmed community reassurance videos aimed at local residents and university 
students which provided information about where to find support. 

6 The road ahead for 2021 

6.1 Due to a change in funding streams, the county-wide SOS project will be replaced 
with the ‘No More’ project as of April 2021. There will be a dedicated No More 
worker shared between Welwyn Hatfield, East Herts and Broxbourne area. There 
will be three other workers shared across the other Hertfordshire districts. The 
workers will be available to support young people who are at risk of, or already 
involved in, violence, county lines, gangs, etc. The workers will be tasked through 
the Welwyn Hatfield Triage Panel and Youth Action Panel.   

6.2 The CSP will continue to commit to educating young people, parents/guardians 
and professionals around a range of topics. The priority areas we will focus on 
include grooming, exploitation, county lines, youth violence, mental health and 
domestic abuse. 

6.3 Additions to the borough’s CCTV network should hopefully provide additional 
resource in the partnership’s approach to tackling ASB. Specifically, the new 

Page 15



- 4 - 

cameras in Moneyhole Lane Car Park and KGV Playing Pitches Car Park which 
have previously seen a high level of ASB.   

6.4 Domestic abuse will remain a key priority for the CSP as we move forward into the 
new financial year. As previously mentioned, referrals for domestic abuse dropped 
off from key agencies during national lockdowns. With people staying home more 
it is important we work even harder to ensure residents know where and how to 
access support. The partnership also has a new Domestic Abuse Action Plan 
which they will work towards.  

6.5 The consultation for the current Hatfield Public Spaces Protection Order has 
started and the partnership will be working with the community to ensure that the 
Order is still fit for purpose.    

6.6 Mental health will also be one of the partnership’s key priorities for the year, as we 
are aware that the pandemic has impacted peoples’ mental health and wellbeing. 
We will work with the council’s Youth Partnership Officer and Public Health team 
to deliver a range of projects that will include awareness training to professionals, 
schools and support for residents (including young people).  

Community Safety Priorities  

6.7 It is the role of the Responsible Authorities Group (RAG) to discuss and decide on 
the priorities for the partnership based on local knowledge and data.  

6.8 The proposed priorities for 2021/22 are listed below and will be reviewed and 
agreed by RAG on 9th March.  

1. Keep Down Crime – especially burglary at home 
2. Prevent Anti-Social Behaviour and increase awareness around county lines 
3. Reduce the damage to neighbourhoods caused by drug and alcohol misuse 
4. Protect Vulnerable People 
5. Support People Enduring or Escaping Domestic Abuse, Intimidation and 

Harassment 
6. Work to reduce the impact that the pandemic has had on the partnership 

and the community 

7 Financial Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no financial implications directly related to the content of this report.  

8. Legal Implication(s) 

8.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a statutory responsibility to review the 
discharge of crime and disorder functions by responsible authorities in its areas. 

8 Risk Management Implications 

8.1 The recognised risk that a partner might disengage from joint work is reduced in 
the case of the CSP because each responsible authority has a statutory duty to 
take part. Partners recognise the value of the CSP, and the main threat to partners’ 
involvement arises from major legislative or organisational changes. 

8.2 Any specific risks associated with project delivery are recorded on the council’s 
Risk Management system. 

  

Page 16



- 5 - 

9 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no implications for security and terrorism arising from this report.   

9.2 The CSP support the governments CONTEST strategy and the Prevent agenda.  

9.3 The CSP offers support and training to professionals through the Herts County 
Council Prevent Lead Officer.  

9.4 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council sits on the County Prevent Board and also co-
ordinate information requests from the Eastern Region Special Operations Unit. 

9.5 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council also has a PREVENT steering group which 
meets regularly to review the council’s commitment to the PREVENT agenda, 
which ties in with the Community Safety Partnership.  

10 Procurement Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report. 

11 Climate Change Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The content of this report is linked to the council’s new corporate priority for Sense 
of Community and Safety. 

13 Communications Plan 

13.1 Providing community assurance is a key target of the CSP. This is done via 
campaigns and initiatives, and ensuring that the partnership actively engages with 
the community on all matters relating to improving their safety. At this stage we are 
unsure to what level if any face to face engagement will be able to take place 
through 2021, so the partnership will have to work to ensure that it engages with 
all corners of borough.  

13.2 The CSP has its own social media channel and pages on the Council’s website. 
The CSP also ensures that partners are engaging in borough wide initiatives by 
sharing and engaging within online media across the partnership.  

13.3 The CSP continue to have a presence in the borough’s ONE WelHat magazine 
which is sent to every home.  

14 Health and Wellbeing 

14.1 Residents of the borough should always feel safe in their local area, as that is key 
to an individual’s positive health and wellbeing.  

15 Equality and Diversity 

15.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with 
this report, as it is for information only. 

 
Name of author Matt Rayner ex 2174 
Title Community Partnerships Manager 
Date March 2021 
 

Page 17



- 6 - 

 
Appendix One – CSP Structure, including different sub-groups 
Appendix Two – 3 year Strategic Plan 
 
 

Page 18



ASB: Anti Social Behaviour

CID: Community Information Day

CGL: Change, Grow, Live  
(operating in Welwyn Hatfield as 
Spectrum)

CSE: Child Sexual Exploitation

CSM: Community Safety 
Managers

CSP: Community Safety 
Partnership

CYC: Community Youth Champion

HFRS: Hertfordshire Fire and 
Rescue Service

KEY TO ABBREVIATIONS
JAG: Joint Agency Group

MAGPYE: Multi Agency Group for 
the Prevention of Youth Exclusion

MARAC: Multi-Agency Risk 
Assessment Conference

PAL: Partnership Accreditation for 
Landlords

RAG: Responsible Authorities 
Group

SNT: Safer Neighbourhood Team

WHBC: Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council

Community
Information
Days (CIDs)

Schools
Education

Annual Domestic
Abuse Conference

Mental Health Support
and Awareness

Op
ReprisePositive

Pathways
Project

Heads Up
Youth

Magazine

Community
Engagement

Crucial Crew
(Year 6)

OPERATIONAL / 
PROBLEM SOLVING

ACTION PLAN 2020/21

ASB Forum
CHAIR: WHBC

Domestic Abuse Forum
CHAIR: Crane and Staple Solicitors

MAGPYE
CHAIR: WHBC

Task and Finish Groups
CHAIR: Varied, depending on 

identified issue

Youth Action Panel
CHAIR: WHBC

Identify
review

Deliver
report

JOINT AGENCY GROUP (JAG)
Responsible for delivering the Action Plan, update against progress on specified 
actions and deliver multi-agency work to tackle specific issues raised up during 
JAG meetings. Meets every six weeks. 

PARTNERSHIP PRINCIPLES: 
• Information sharing and excellent communication 

• Trust other partners’ expertise and integrity 

• Lessons learnt to be shared 

• Work on the principle of ‘early intervention’ is better than ‘intervention’ 

• Open to change to enable learning, improving and achieving 

• Consistent approach to public engagement /consistent messages

AGENCIES INVOLVED: 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL – Street Wardens, Licencing, 
Planning, PAL, Environmental Health, Town Centres, Private Sector Housing, Risk 
and Resilience, Youth and Sports Partnerships, ASB Team, Housing Needs 

EMERGENCY SERVICES – Police, Fire Service, East and North Herts NHS Trust 

VOLUNTARY PROVIDERS – Mind in Mid Herts, Spectrum CGL, Resolve, YMCA 

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL – Targeted Youth Support Team, 
Trading Standards

OTHER AGENCIES – Paradigm Housing, BeNCH, University of Hertfordshire

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES GROUP (RAG) 

Responsible authorities are under a statutory duty to ensure partnership work 
is in place within the Community Safety Partnership (CSP) via regular meetings 
to review the strategic action plan tackling identified priorities, review progress, 
tackle blockers in delivery and information sharing between agencies. Meets 
every three months.

THE RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES ARE: 
• Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (WHBC) 
• Hertfordshire Constabulary 
• Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service (HFRS) 
• East and North Herts Clinical Commissioning Group (ENHCCG) 
• National Probation Service (NPS) 
• BeNCH Community Rehabilitation Company (CRC) 
• Hertfordshire County Council (HCC) 

• County Community Safety Unit (CCSU)  

CO-OPTED BODIES ARE: 
• University of Hertfordshire 
• Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office 

Each responsible authority has the statutory duty to nominate a Designated 
Liaison Officer, whose role is to proactively facilitate information sharing 
between partner agencies, ensure legislation is adhered to and that at least the 
minimum information sharing requirements are complied with.  

  1   Keep down crime, especially burglary at homes 
LEAD: Welwyn Hatfield SNT, Police

2   Prevent anti-social behaviour 
LEAD: WHBC ASB Team

  3   Reduce the damage caused to neighbourhoods by 
drugs and alcohol misuse 

LEAD: JAG

  4   Protect vulnerable people 
LEAD: HFRS

  5   Support people enduring or escaping domestic 
abuse, intimidation and harassment 

LEAD: WHBC

  6   Increase awareness of county lines and enforce 
against known offenders in the local area 

LEAD: Herts Police

MULTI-AGENCY WORK

ASB, CSE, CSM, Drugs and Alcohol 
Campaign Group, MARAC, 

Modern Slavery Partnership, 
Sunflower Partnership

STRATEGIC COUNTY GROUPS

OTHER
GROUPS*COVID-19 Recovery and Impact is considered within each priority as above. 

The Welwyn Hatfield Community Safety Partnership has a statutory duty, under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, to work 
towards achieving the aims and objectives of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Plan ‘Everybody’s Business’

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD
COMMUNITY SAFETY
PARTNERSHIP 

3 YEAR PLAN
2019-2022

Safer
Stronger

SaferStronger3YearPlan_A5_v5.qxp_Layout 1  10/12/2018  09:43  Page 1

Page 21



Welwyn Hatfield Community Safety Partnership (CSP) has a proven record of
successful collaborative working to help address crime and disorder across the
borough using a problem solving based approach. Crime levels in Welwyn
Hatfield are relatively low and the majority of our residents are satisfied with
their local area, with 93%* feeling safe when out in the community. 

This three year plan outlines some of the emerging issues that the CSP is
facing and how we plan to tackle these issues as a partnership. We recognise
that modern society is facing ongoing changes and as a result we are all
learning to adapt to the shift in culture. We therefore must ensure our plans
are adaptable. This also applies to crime trends which we have seen change
considerably in the last 10-20 years.  

A safe community will always remain important to everyone, and as a result
we intend to continue working together to make Welwyn Hatfield an even
safer place to live, work and visit.

Foreword 
Rob Bridge
Chief Executive of Welwyn
Hatfield Borough Council
and Chair of Welwyn
Hatfield Community
Safety Partnership

*93% of those surveyed as part of the Welwyn
Hatfield Satisfaction Tracker feel safe in their
local area during the day time in Q1 2018/19.

2

SaferStronger3YearPlan_A5_v5.qxp_Layout 1  10/12/2018  09:43  Page 2

Page 22



About us
Welwyn Hatfield Community Safety Partnership (CSP) is a strategic
partnership, working to reduce crime and offending in accordance with the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998. The partnership aims to make Welwyn Hatfield
an even safer place to live, work and visit.

The partnership is made up of the following agencies, along with a wider
range of local community and voluntary groups:

Hertfordshire
Constabulary 

Welwyn
Hatfield
Borough
Council Hertfordshire

Fire and
Rescue

Housing
Associations

National
Probation
Service

Hertfordshire
CountyCouncil

Voluntary and
community

sector

East
and North

Hertfordshire
Clinical

Commissioning
Group

BENCH
Community

Rehabilitation
Company

University of
Hertfordshire

 

3

SaferStronger3YearPlan_A5_v5.qxp_Layout 1  10/12/2018  09:43  Page 3

Page 23



Welwyn Hatfield Community
Safety Partnership Priorities 
● Keep down crime, especially burglary in 

the home

● Prevent Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB)

● Reduce the damage caused to
neighbourhoods by drugs and alcohol misuse

● Protect vulnerable people 

● Support people enduring or escaping
domestic abuse, intimidation and harassment 

4

SaferStronger3YearPlan_A5_v5.qxp_Layout 1  10/12/2018  09:43  Page 4

Page 24



Emerging issues
and how we plan
to tackle them
With society rapidly changing,
the CSP is continuously adapting
to deal with new and emerging
issues. In order to best deal with
these issues, we must not only be
reactive, but proactive. 

Noted below are some key
emerging issues which we are
seeing nationally, county-wide
and locally and how we plan to
tackle them.

Youth Related 
Anti-Social Behaviour
Youth ASB is something that
continues to be a priority for the
CSP. Working closely with youth
services, schools and local
community groups we aim to
reduce youth-related ASB and its
impact on the community. 

We aim to increase the number of
diversionary activities available to
young people within the borough,
using continuous analysis to
identify where opportunities lie
and where there are gaps within
youth provision. 

We will intervene as early as
possible. When young people 
are first identified by services
through their involvement in 
ASB we aim to engage with that
young person and their families to
understand how we can best
support them and encourage that
young person to take a more
positive path in their life. 

Where there are identified ASB
hotspots we will work closely
across agencies to improve the
environment as best we can to
make it less desirable for young
people to cause nuisance and
ASB.

5

SaferStronger3YearPlan_A5_v5.qxp_Layout 1  10/12/2018  09:43  Page 5

Page 25



Empowering young
people
With access to the internet and
social media, where young people
have access to an infinite amount
of information, protecting and
empowering our young people to
make informed decisions around
their safety is one of our key
priorities. 

The CSP plans to empower young
people with the tools and
knowledge they need to make
informed decisions about their
future, with a particular focus on
crime and disorder. 

We will continue to raise
awareness and educate them on
issues such as drugs, gangs,
violence and knife crime.

We are committed to running
various projects and programmes
aimed at educating and
empowering young people, some
of these include: an annual
Community Youth Champions
event, Year 6 Crucial Crew, Year 9
Facts and Futures Fair and
Welwyn Hatfield Youth Council.

6

SaferStronger3YearPlan_A5_v5.qxp_Layout 1  10/12/2018  09:43  Page 6

Page 26



Safeguarding
vulnerable people
Missing persons:Working
collaboratively, the CSP aims to
share intelligence appropriately
and efficiently to safeguard
vulnerable people who may be at
risk of going missing. We will also
work jointly to understand why
some individuals are repeatedly
going missing.

Modern slavery and human
trafficking: The CSP works to raise
awareness within the community
of modern slavery and human
trafficking. Organisations such as
the council, police and fire are all

first responders and have a duty 
to support and safeguard any
individual who presents to be a
victim of trafficking or slavery.  

Scams and fraud: The CSP
continues to protect people from
scams and fraud, particularly those
who are elderly or vulnerable and
are often targeted the most. With
an aging population it means that
the likelihood of these crimes
occurring increases. Through
awareness and education we will
ensure these groups know the
warning factors to look out for. 
We will also protect and enforce
against scams and fraud with
Trading Standards and the police.  

7

SaferStronger3YearPlan_A5_v5.qxp_Layout 1  10/12/2018  09:43  Page 7

Page 27



Domestic abuse: The CSP aims to
raise awareness in the wider
community on the effects and the
impact of domestic abuse in
society. We will equip school age
children with the knowledge and
awareness of healthy relationships
and protective behaviours. We will
engage with local businesses to
help raise awareness and offer safe
locations for victims through the J9
project. We will also continue to
support victims of domestic abuse
through a weekly drop-in service for
those affected. 

We will also continue to work
closely with schools, social services
and the police to safeguard
children who live in homes where
domestic abuse is present. The
earlier we can support children who
are experiencing domestic abuse in
the home the better so early
detection is key.

Hoarding: Compulsive hoarding is
a debilitating condition that can
cause serious harm to those with
the condition. Working closely
together, the fire service, borough
council and public health will
continue to support and refer those

who are hoarding to the
appropriate agencies using early
intervention.

Homelessness: The CSP continues
to support those who are homeless
or are threatened with
homelessness, including people
who are homeless as a result of
domestic abuse. With an increasing
number of households threatened
with homelessness innovative
solutions are being sought for
temporary accommodation with a
long-term plan to redevelop council
sites which will increase the
borough’s capacity. Measures are
also being put in place to protect
single homeless people, offering
stability and support to enable
them to move on. CSP partners
Resolve work closely with the
borough council to support people
who are sleeping rough and/or
struggling with addiction. 

Radicalisation: CSP partners will
continue to prepare their own staff,
as well as community groups and
residents, to recognise the signs of
radicalisation in society and what
action to take if they are concerned
about an individual or group. 

SaferStronger3YearPlan_A5_v5.qxp_Layout 1  10/12/2018  09:43  Page 8

Page 28



Harm caused by drugs
and alcohol
The CSP will continue to raise
awareness of the dangers and
implications of drug use to young
people through partnership
working with secondary and
primary schools.

Working closely with the
University of Hertfordshire and
the university policing team, the
CSP will deliver key messages and
campaigns around the dangers
and implications of drug misuse.

Working closely with local
voluntary, public and private
agencies we will continue to
support those suffering with
addiction.

The CSP will also continue to
gather intelligence of known
hotspots, carrying out
enforcement days and improving
the environment where
appropriate.

9

SaferStronger3YearPlan_A5_v5.qxp_Layout 1  10/12/2018  09:43  Page 9

Page 29



County lines
County lines is a serious issue
where criminal groups set up a
drug dealing operation in a place
outside of their usual operating
area. Gangs will move their drug
dealing from big cities to smaller
towns in order to make more
money. This can have a big
impact on the community who
live there and also bring with it
serious criminal behaviour. 

Although this type of behaviour
is rare within the borough, over
the next 3 years this is something
that the CSP will focus on to
ensure Welwyn Hatfield does not
become an area where this takes
place. 

Working closely with the police
and Hertfordshire County Council,
we plan to increase awareness
amongst young people about the
dangers and implications of
becoming involved with drugs as
well as educating them on the
signs of grooming. We will also
monitor trends and take
preventative action to protect
vulnerable groups for example
young people who are repeatedly
going missing and monitor signs
of potential grooming cases of
Child Criminal Exploitation (CCE)
or Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE). 

Serious and
organised
violence
Serious and organised violence is
something that the CSP monitors
closely through the work of
Hertfordshire Constabulary. The
term ‘serious violence’ covers a
wide range of criminal offences
but most commonly refers to
higher harm offences such as
knife crime, gun crime, homicide
and the criminal exploitation of
children and vulnerable adults.

A key focus for the CSP over the
next three years is early
intervention and prevention of
serious and organised violence.
As such, the CSP aims to educate
our younger generation, raise
awareness of the signs of
violence, raise awareness of the
grooming process for children
and vulnerable adults, support
those who are most at risk of
violence and use enforcement to
prevent it. 

10

SaferStronger3YearPlan_A5_v5.qxp_Layout 1  10/12/2018  09:43  Page 10

Page 30



Delivery and monitoring
The Joint Agency Group (JAG) is
key to the delivery of the work of
the CSP and is where much of the
core work is undertaken. The
group works to solve current and
emerging local problems offering
a tactical approach. 

The work of the local JAG feeds
into the Responsible Authorities
Group (RAG) which takes a
strategic lead on the CSP. The
group is made up of senior
officers from CSP agencies. RAG is
responsible for making key,
informed decisions surrounding
the CSP.

In addition there are key forums
and groups set up to work to
solve specific problems at a local
level. These include Welwyn
Hatfield Domestic Abuse Forum,
Multi-Agency Group for
Prevention of Youth Exclusion
(MAGPYE) and the Anti-Social
Behaviour Forum.

The CSP also has an annual CSP
Action Plan which is more specific
and outlines individual actions
agreed by partners. This is
overseen by JAG and is available
on the council’s website:
www.welhat.gov.uk/safe  

11

SaferStronger3YearPlan_A5_v5.qxp_Layout 1  10/12/2018  09:43  Page 11

Page 31



Council Offices
The Campus
Welwyn Garden City
Herts
AL8 6AE

feelsafe@welhat.gov.uk
01707 357 000
www.welhat.gov.uk/safe

58
41

/C
&

P
/D

ec
18

/N
/P

SaferStronger3YearPlan_A5_v5.qxp_Layout 1  10/12/2018  09:43  Page 12

Page 32



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  Updated February 2021    

OVERVIEW WORK PROGRAMME 2021-22  
 
 

 

* Please note that the highlighted items are statutory requirements for scrutiny by local authorities. 

 
Members of the Committee can, during the course of the year, add items within 

 the remit of the Committee that they wish to be considered and discussed. 

Meeting Date Report Topic What is the Outcome 
or Output required? 

Author (s) 

 

Monday 5 July 2021 Housing Maintenance and Repairs  To consider findings of T&F 
Panel 

Governance Services 

Monday 6 September 2021    

Monday 1 November 2021    

Thursday 6 January 2022 

 

Review of provision of health services in 
the borough * 

To discuss annual report 
and feedback any 
recommendations 

Joanna Harding 

Monday 14 March 2022 Review of provision of the discharge of 
crime and disorder services in borough * 

To discuss annual report 
and feedback any 
recommendations 

Sian Chambers 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

- 1 - 
Date: 8 February 2021 

 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

FORWARD PLAN 
 

FOR THE PERIOD 1 MARCH 2021 TO 30 JUNE 2021 

REF: 0321 

 
The Forward Plan sets out the Key Decisions which are to be taken by the Cabinet (and where appropriate the Council) during the period 
covered by the Plan.  The Plan is updated each month and is available from Council Offices and libraries and on the website 
(www.welhat.gov.uk).  A Key Decision is one which is likely to result in expenditure or savings of above £100,000, or to have an effect on 
communities living or working in an area comprising two or more Wards of the Borough. 
 

Members of the public are welcome to comment on any item on the Forward Plan.  Any comments must be given in writing or by e-mail to the 
Governance Services Manager to be received no later than seven days before the meeting at which the decision is to be taken.  Copies of 
available reports can be obtained from the contact shown in the Forward Plan.  
 

Members of the public are also welcome to attend public meetings of the Cabinet.  Cabinet meetings are currently being held online via the 
Zoom application and start at 5.00pm.  During the period of this Plan meetings will be held on:- 
 

Tuesday 9 March, Tuesday 6 April and Tuesday 15 June 2021 
 

The following Councillors are in the Cabinet:- 
 

T.Kingsbury -  Leader of the Council 
D.Bell - Deputy Leader of the Council and Executive Member, Resources 
  
S.Boulton -  Executive Member, Environment and Planning 
T.Mitchinson -  Executive Member, Leisure, Culture and Communications 
N.Pace - Executive Member, Housing and Community 
B.Sarson -  Executive Member, Regeneration, Economic, Development and Partnerships 
F.Thomson -  Executive Member, Governance, Public Health and Climate Change 
 

Any queries concerning the Forward Plan should be directed to Alison Marston, Governance Services Manager at the Council  
Offices, Campus East, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE telephone number (01707) 357444 or e-mail a.marston@welhat.gov.uk. 

P
age 35

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/
mailto:g.seal@welhat.gov.uk


 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

FORWARD PLAN 
 

FOR THE PERIOD 1 MARCH 2021 TO 30 JUNE 2021 

 

 

 

- 2 - 
Date: 8 February 2021 

REFERENCE 
AND 

SUBJECT 

DECISION NEEDED WHEN WILL 
DECISION 
BE TAKEN 

WHO WILL 
BE 

CONSULTED 

METHOD OF 
CONSULTATION 

REPORTS AVAILABLE 
AND CONTACT 

OFFICERS 

EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER 

FP1030 Housing 
Delivery Test 
Action Plan 

Adoption of action plan 9 March 2021 
- Cabinet 

Cabinet 
Planning and 
Parking Panel 

By report Head of Planning 
Colin Haigh 
Tel: 01707 357239 
c.haigh@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor 
Stephen Boulton 
 

FP1033 
Corporate Plan 
2021-24 

Adoption of plan 
outlining strategic 
aims, commitments 
and approach. 

9 March 2021 
- Cabinet 
 
17 March 2021 
- Council 
 

Residents, 
business, 
community 
groups and 
other partners 

Borough-wide online 
survey and 
workshop at WH 
Alliance conference 

Policy and Communications 
Manager 
Thom Burn 
Tel: 01707357245 
t.burn@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Terry 
Mitchinson 
 
 
 

FP1011 Welwyn 
Garden City 
Estate 
Management 
Scheme 

To agree 
recommendations 
following a review of 
the Estate 
Management Scheme. 

9 March 2021 
- Cabinet 

  Head of Planning 
Colin Haigh 
Tel: 01707 357239 
c.haigh@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor 
Stephen Boulton 
 

FP1031 Climate 
Change 
Strategy 

Adoption of strategy 
and action plan 

9 March 2021 
- Cabinet 

Climate Change 
Member Group 

Consultation on draft 
strategy 

Head of Planning 
Colin Haigh 
Tel: 01707 357239 
c.haigh@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Fiona 
Thomson 
 

FP1027 
Approval of 
Procurement 
Strategy 

Approval of 
Procurement and 
Commercial Strategy 
for 2021-2025. 

9 March 2021 
- Cabinet 

Officers and 
Members 

Draft reports and 
strategies 

Procurement Manager 
Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 
a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Duncan 
Bell 
 

P
age 36

mailto:c.haigh@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:t.burn@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:c.haigh@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:c.haigh@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk


 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

FORWARD PLAN 
 

MONTH PERIOD 1 MARCH 2021 TO 30 JUNE 2021 

 

 
 

 

- 3 - 
Date: 8 February 2021 

 

REFERENCE 
AND 

SUBJECT 

DECISION NEEDED WHEN WILL 
DECISION 
BE TAKEN 

WHO WILL BE 
CONSULTED 

METHOD OF 
CONSULTATION 

REPORTS AVAILABLE 
AND CONTACT 

OFFICERS 

EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER 

FP1026 
Extension of 49 
Peartree Lane 

Dispensation to 
Contract Procedure 
Rules to award 
contract for an 
extension to 49 
Peartree Lane. 

9 March 2021 
- Cabinet 

Officers By reports Procurement Manager 
Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 
a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Nick 
Pace 
 

FP1022 
Disabled 
Adaptations 
Contract 

Award of Contract for 
Disabled Adaptations 

9 March 2021 
- Cabinet 

General 
Procurement 
Board 

By reports and 
meetings 

Procurement Manager 
Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 
a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Nick 
Pace 
 

FP1032 De-
carbonisation 
Contracts 

Award of contracts to 
deliver property based 
de-carbonisation 
schemes. 

Portfolio 
Holder 
Decision 
Notice – 
March/ 
April 2021 

Climate Change 
Group 

Reports Service Manager (Building 
Services) 
Mark Croft 
Tel: 01707 357939 
m.croft@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Duncan 
Bell 
 

FP1025 
Crematory 
Equipment 

Award of Contract for 
the design and supply 
of Crematory 
Equipment. 

Portfolio 
Holder 
Decision 
Notice – 
April 2021 

Crematorium 
Project Board 

Meeting with tender 
evaluation criteria 

Procurement Manager 
Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 
a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor 
Stephen Boulton 
 

P
age 37

mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:m.croft@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
PUBLICATION OF DECISION LIST NUMBER 02/20-21 

 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2020/21 

 
Date Published: 12 February 2021 

 
This document lists the decisions taken by the Cabinet at its meeting on 9 February 2021.  The list covers key and non-key decisions.  These 
decisions will come into force within ten working days of the date of this document (i.e. 26 February 2021) unless the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee calls a decision in. 
 
Cabinet decisions are subject to pre-implementation review through the following call-in procedure:- 
 
Decisions that involve expenditure over £100,000 or that affect more than one ward can be called in. “Call-in” requires at least a quarter of the 
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to request the “call-in”, in writing, within four working days of the publication of the decision 
by the Cabinet, to be effective.  A Notification of Call-in Form can be obtained from and should be completed, signed and returned to Alison 
Marston, Governance Services Manager.  Either a special meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to consider the “called-in” item(s) 
will be convened within three working days of the call-in request or the item will be placed on the Agenda of the next available meeting of the 
Committee, depending on which can be achieved earliest.  The Call-In procedure does not apply where the decision being taken by the 
Cabinet is urgent. 
 
Where the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is of the opinion that an executive decision which relates to an area covered by the Committee 
yet to be made or made but not yet implemented would be, contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with 
the Council’s budget, then it should seek advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural 
Services). 
 

 
If you have any queries or wish to obtain further report information or information on a decision please refer to: 

Alison Marston, Governance Services Manager at the Council Offices, Campus East, 
Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 

Telephone number (01707) 357444 or e-mail a.marston@welhat.gov.uk 
 

P
age 39

mailto:g.seal@welhat.gov.uk


 

 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 9 February 2021 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

QUARTER 3 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2020-21 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

All Wards 
 

No Key 
  

Richard Baker 
Tel: 01707 357425 

r.baker@welhat.gov.uk 
 

Yes 
18 February 2021 

 

DECISION: 

(1) Cabinet noted the revenue forecast outturn position as at Quarter 3. 
 
(2) Cabinet noted the position on debts set out in section 5 of this report. 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 40

mailto:r.baker@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 9 February 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

QUARTER 3 CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2020-21 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

All Wards 
 

No Key 
  

Richard Baker 
Tel: 01707 357425 

r.baker@welhat.gov.uk 
 

Yes 
18 February 2021 

 

DECISION: 

(1) Cabinet noted the capital forecast outturn position as at Quarter 3 as shown in Table 1. 
 
(2) Cabinet noted the forecast position as at 31 December 2020 for funding of the capital programme and reserve balances as reflected 

in Table 2. 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 41

mailto:r.baker@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 9 February 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

Local Plan - Annual Monitoring Report 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

All Wards 
 

No Key 
  

Sue Tiley 
Tel: 01707 357268 

s.tiley@welhat.gov.uk 
 

Yes 
18 February 2021 

 

DECISION: 

That the Annual Monitoring Report be approved for publication. 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 42

mailto:s.tiley@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 9 February 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

COUNCIL ACHIEVEMENTS LIST - OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2020 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

All Wards 
 

No Key 
  

Paul Underwood 
Tel: 01707 357220 

p.underwood@welhat.gov.u
k 

Yes 
18 February 2021 

 

DECISION: 

Cabinet noted the report and contents of the Achievements List. 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 43

mailto:p.underwood@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:p.underwood@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 9 February 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

Mill Green Mill - Trust Lease 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

2 
 

Hatfield East 
 

No Forward Plan 
Reference 

FP1029 
  

Paul Underwood 
Tel: 01707 357220 

p.underwood@welhat.gov.u
k 

Yes 
18 February 2021 

 

DECISION: 

Cabinet noted the contents of the report and instructed officers to arrange for the voluntary surrender of the lease with the Trust, subject 
to the implications set out in the report and that such surrender is consistent with the Heads of Terms of Surrender shown in Appendix A. 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 44

mailto:p.underwood@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:p.underwood@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 9 February 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

SURRENDER OF LEASE 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

2 
 

Hatfield Central 
 

No Key 
  

Richard Baker 
Tel: 01707 357425 

r.baker@welhat.gov.uk 
 

Yes 
18 February 2021 

 

DECISION: 

(1) Cabinet noted the proposals regarding negotiations on the surrender of the lease.  
 
(2) Cabinet approved that an options appraisal be undertaken for the site and that the site is not leased out or marketed (both short and 

long term) until this has been completed. A report will be returned to Cabinet in June 2021 on the options recommended.   
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 45

mailto:r.baker@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 9 February 2021 

 
 

The following decisions have been taken during the period 5 January to 9 February 2021 using Executive 
Member Decision Notices. 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

PROCUREMENT OF MAINS ISOLATOR SWITCHES 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

All Wards 
 

No Key 
  

Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 

a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 
 

Yes 
13 January 2021 

 

DECISION: 

To commence a procurement process to enable a four year contract to be let for mains isolator switches (in the Council’s Housing stock). 
 
(Note: This decision was taken by Executive Member Decision Notice). 
 
Date this decision was taken – 5 January 2021 
Date of publication of the decision – 7 January 2021 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 

P
age 46

mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 9 February 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

PROCUREMENT OF CAMPUS WEST WATER DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

Handside 
 

No Key 
  

Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 

a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 
 

Yes 
10 February 2021 

 

DECISION: 

To commence a procurement process to enable a 10 to 12 weeks contract to be let for surface water drainage improvements at Campus 
West. 
 
(Note: This decision was taken by Executive Member Decision Notice). 
 
Date this decision was taken – 2 January 2021 
Date of publication of the decision – 4 February 2021 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 

P
age 47

mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 9 February 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

Public Spaces Protection Order for Hatfield Town Centre and surrounding area - Approval to undertake a statutory consultation 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

Hatfield Central 
 

No Non-Key 
  

Matt Rayner 
Tel: 01707 357174 

m.rayner@welhat.gov.uk 
 

No 
 

 

DECISION: 

To approve that the Council undertakes a statutory consultation to enable it to review the effectiveness of the relevant Public Spaces 
Protection Order (PSPO). This would be to make recommendations to Cabinet as to whether it should be discharged, amended or 
extended. 
 
(Note: This decision was taken by Executive Member Decision Notice). 
 
Date this decision was taken – 9 February 2021 
Date of publication of the decision – 9 February 2021 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 

P
age 48

mailto:m.rayner@welhat.gov.uk


Scrutiny Scoring Matrix 
 
 

ASSESSMENT 
 

Public Interest + Strategic Value + Risk + Corporate Priorities + Financial Value   =   Scrutiny 
Value Score 

 

 Numerical score 

Public Interest 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

Strategic Value 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

Risk to Council or service delivery 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

Alignment to Corporate Priorities 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

Financial Value 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 

 

Scrutiny Value Score 
 

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

 

 Numerical score 

Issue of concern for partners? 
low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

Will the Council be able to achieve an 
effective outcome? 

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

Will there be potential benefits for a 
significant part of the community 
/partners/stakeholders or the Council? 

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

 

 

Additional Score 
 

 
 

Total Score 
 

 

Total Score Result and Guidelines for Further Action 

 
< 9 Low Priority - add to the committee work programme if priority changes/add 

information on Member Information Hub 
 
>10 Medium Priority - Request a report to OSC, hold a single scrutiny event or set up a 

Task and Finish Panel (T&P).  
 
 

> 15 High Priority - Request a report to OSC, hold a single scrutiny event or set up a Task 
and Finish Panel. To take precedence over issues of medium priority.  

 

Resources  After selection and in the event of competing priorities, 
consideration should be given by the committee on any necessary 
resources required to deliver the topic to scrutiny. 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Alison Marston 
Executive Member: Cllr Fiona Thomson 
Hatfield Central Ward 

 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 3 MARCH 2021 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

CALL-IN OF CABINET DECISION 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 One of the underpinning principles of Overview and Scrutiny (OSC) is the ability 
of non-Executive Members to hold the Executive to account. A key method of 
ensuring accountability is through critically and routinely considering the 
performance and decisions taken by the Executive.  

1.2 To facilitate this approach, the OSC may ‘call-in’ a decision of the Executive.  

1.3 The Executive will be required to re-consider its decision, taking into account any 
recommendations or views expressed by the OSC.  

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Overview and Scrutiny Committee discuss and consider the Cabinet 
decision that has been called in and consider any appropriate recommendations 
to Cabinet. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 At the meeting of Cabinet on 9 February 2021, a report was considered on the 
surrender of the lease of Friendship House. As this report is considered 
confidential by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended), it is included under agenda item 13. 

3.2 The decision taken is shown in the extract of the Cabinet Decision List at 
Appendix A which was published on 12 February 2021. 

3.3 A call-in of the above Cabinet decision, taken on 9 February 2021, was received 
by the Governance Services Manager on Monday 16 February 2021 from 
Councillor Glyn Hayes.  

3.4 The call-in was supported by the following Councillors: 

 Councillor Max Holloway 

 Councillor Margaret Birleson 

 Councillor Lynn Chesterman 

3.5 The Council’s Constitution stipulates that “at least a quarter of the members of 
the OSC may email the Governance Services Manager within 4 working days of 
the publication of the decision, to call it in.” As the membership of the OSC 
comprises thirteen members, this satisfies that requirement. 

3.6 The reasons given by the Councillors for the call-in are set out below: 

 To scrutinise the proposals regarding negotiations on the surrender of the 
lease 

 To scrutinise the detail regarding the options appraisal that is to be carried 

Page 51

Agenda Item 10



- 2 - 

out 

 To scrutinise the full report that this is based on that went to Cabinet in 
part 2 and whether it really needed to be published in part 2  

3.7 In accordance with the council’s OSC protocol, the following procedure should 
take place: 

 The Member of the OSC who called in the decision should speak first. 

 The Chairman would then invite the relevant Cabinet Member to respond. 

 The Committee can then ask questions of the Cabinet Member who may 
ask a relevant officer to supply further information if necessary. 

 The Committee debates the issue, considers any appropriate 
recommendations and votes on the outcome. 

The OSC should resolve to move into a part 2 session, the moment it becomes 
apparent that confidential or exempt information on this item is likely to be 
discussed at the meeting. 

3.8 The OSC protocol also clarifies the Cabinet Member’s role at ‘call-in’ meetings. 
The purpose of the relevant Cabinet Member’s attendance is purely to answer 
questions of fact and not to present the item. Cabinet Members should ensure 
they are not drawn into the debate, so as to avoid any possible allegations of 
becoming involved in the scrutiny of their own decisions, which may bring them 
into conflict with the Code of Conduct for Members. It is therefore important to 
draw the distinction between answering questions of fact and becoming involved 
in the Committee debate into the decision that is being scrutinised. 

4 Financial Implication(s) 

4.1 There are no financial implications directly related to the content of this report. 
The financial implications of the Cabinet decision are outlined in the report under 
agenda item 13. 

8. Legal Implication(s) 

4.2 There are no legal implications directly related to the content of this report. The 
legal implications of the Cabinet decision are outlined in the report under agenda 
item 13. 

5 Risk Management Implications 

5.1 There are no risk management implications directly related to the content of this 
report. The risk management implications of the decision are outlined in the 
Cabinet report under agenda item 13. 

6 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

6.1 There are security and terrorism implications arising from this report.   

7 Procurement Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report. 

8 Climate Change Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 

9 Human Resources Implication(s) 

Page 52



- 3 - 

9.1 There are no human resources implications arising from this report. 

10 Health & Wellbeing Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report. 

11 Community and Engagement Implication(s) 

11.1 The content of this report is linked to the council’s new corporate priority for 
Sense of Community and Safety. 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priorities: Our 
Community and Our Council.  

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection 
with this report because this report does not propose changes to existing 
service-related policies or the development of new service-related policies. 

 
Name of author Alison Marston 
Title Governance Services Manager 
Date February 2021 
 
 
 
Appendix A- Cabinet Decision List 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 9 February 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

SURRENDER OF LEASE 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

2 
 

Hatfield Central 
 

No Key 
  

Richard Baker 
Tel: 01707 357425 

r.baker@welhat.gov.uk 
 

Yes 
18 February 2021 

 

DECISION: 

(1) Cabinet noted the proposals regarding negotiations on the surrender of the lease.  
 
(2) Cabinet approved that an options appraisal be undertaken for the site and that the site is not leased out or marketed (both short and 

long term) until this has been completed. A report will be returned to Cabinet in June 2021 on the options recommended.   
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 55

mailto:r.baker@welhat.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 57

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6a Report from Budget Setting and Corporate Plan (Task and Finish)
	Corporate Plan 2021-24

	7 COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP
	OSC Report - CSP Appendix 1
	OSC Report - CSP March Appendix 2

	9 WORK PROGRAMME 2021-22
	keydecision 2021.03-2021.06
	Decisions 09022021 1700 Cabinet
	ScrutinyScoringMatrixForm

	10 CALL-IN OF CABINET DECISION
	Pages from Decisions 09022021 1700 Cabinet

	13 CALL-IN OF CABINET DECISION



